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OPINION
PER CURIAM:

Joseph Edward Stephens pled guilty without benefit of a plea
agreement to one count of receiving through the mail videotapes
depicting minors engaged in sexually explicit conduct in violation of
18 U.S.C.A. § 2252(a)(2) (West Supp. 1998). He appeal s the forty-
two month sentence imposed by the district court, asserting that the
district court erred in applying USSG § 2G2.2* (trafficking in, receiv-
ing, transporting, or advertising material involving sexua exploitation
of minors, and possession of such materials with intent to traffic)
rather than USSG § 2G2.4 (possession of material s depicting a minor
engaged in sexually explicit conduct). Application of USSG § 2G2.4
would have resulted in alower sentence because it lacks a specific
offense characteristic contained in USSG § 2G2.2 that applied in Ste-
phens' case. Finding no error, we affirm.

Stephens responded to a notice placed on the Internet by an under-
cover police officer who indicated that he was interested in trading
videos. Stephens offered to trade videos, explained what he wanted,
and listed the titles of a number of videos he had available. The offi-
cer sent Stephens detailed descriptions of five videos depicting
minorsinvolved in sexually explicit conduct; four involved minors
under the age of twelve. Stephens mailed the officer a package con-
taining payment for al five videos and fourteen videos of his own
which he offered to trade for additional videos. The five videos Ste-
phens ordered were delivered to his post office box and he was
arrested after he picked up the package.

The commentary to USSG § 2G2.2 providesthat it appliesto con-
victionsunder 18 U.S.C.A. § 2252(a)(2), which criminalizes (1) trans-
portation of materials depicting minors engaging in sexually explicit
conduct, (2) receipt or distribution of such materials, and (3) sale or
possession with intent to sell of such materials. The commentary to
USSG § 2G2.4 provides that it applies to convictions under 18
U.S.C.A. § 2252(a)(4), which criminalizes possession of three or

*U.S. Sentencing Guidelines Manual (1997).
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more materials depicting minors engaging in sexually explicit con-
duct. Although Stephens pled guilty to aviolation of § 2252(a)(2), he
argued at sentencing that the court should apply USSG § 2G2.4. He
asserted that he had not been charged with intent to traffic in child
pornography and that, therefore, the guideline applicable to posses-
sion of child pornography should be applied. He argued that it is sig-
nificant that USSG § 2G2.4 contains a cross-reference to USSG
§2G2.2 to be applied if the offense involved receipt of pornographic
materias involving minors with intent to traffic. From this, he argued
that USSG § 2G2.2 only applies to receiving such materials with
intent to traffic in them.

The district court determined without comment that the applicable
guideline was USSG § 2G2.2. We agree. Stephens was convicted of
receiving materials depicting minors engaging in sexually explicit
conduct, an offense which falls squarely within USSG§ 2G2.2. Con-
sequently, USSG § 2G2.2 was the guideline which was "most appli-
cable to the offense of conviction." See USSG § 1B1.2(a).

The sentence is therefore affirmed. We dispense with oral argu-

ment because the facts and legal contentions are adequately presented
in the materials before the court and argument would not aid the deci-
sional process.

AFFIRMED



